
 

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
p1 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
MINUTES 

SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

June 27, 2024– 2:00 p.m. 
San Mateo County Transit District Offices 

1250 San Carlos, Ave. San Carlos, CA 94070 

Call to Order: 2:00 PM 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call  

 

 
2. Public Comment 

Persons wishing to address the Board on matters NOT on the posted agenda may do so. Each speaker is limited to three 
minutes. If there are more than five individuals wishing to speak during public comment, the Chairman will draw five speaker 
cards from those submitted to speak during this time.  The balance of the Public Comment speakers will be called upon at the 
end of the Board Meeting. If the item you are speaking on is not listed on the agenda, please be advised that the Board may 
briefly respond to statements made or questions posed as allowed under The Brown Act (Government Code Section 54954.2).  
The Board's general policy is to refer items to staff for attention, or have a matter placed on a future Board agenda for a more 
comprehensive action or report and formal public discussion and input at that time. Speakers may also submit comments via 
email prior to the meeting by sending those comments to rethinker@rethinkwaste.org. 

 
None 
 
3. Executive Director’s Report 
 
Executive Director La Mariana welcomed everyone to the meeting and noted that the slide show being played 
was from the RethinkWaste Earth Day event held on April 27, and the RethinkWaste School Green Team 
celebration in May.  He then gave the following updates: 
 

• There will be no July or August Board meeting, so the next Board meeting is September 26. He listed 
out the remaining meetings for the year: 

o Zero Waste Committee July 25 
o Legislative Committee: August 6, September 10, October 1 and December 3 
o TAC: August 8 and September 12 
o Finance Committee: September 10, and October 8 
o Executive Committee: September 10 and October 8 
o Board of Directors: September 26, October 24 (Study Session), and November 17 

(Holiday lunch) 
o He noted that September 26 would be a half hour longer than normal. 

Agency Present Absent Agency Present Absent 

Belmont X  Redwood City X  
Burlingame  X San Carlos X  
East Palo Alto X  San Mateo X  
Foster City X  County of San Mateo  X 
Hillsborough X  West Bay Sanitary District X  
Menlo Park X  

mailto:rethinker@rethinkwaste.org


 
p2 
 

• He welcomed Dolores Molina-Bucio who started Monday with the Agency as the Administrative 
Associate. 

• The Office buildout project is coming along, and the physical move will be starting in 2 weeks.  He 
noted that staff will be busy with the move and asked for patience with staff as staff deals with the 
stress of moving, but he expects the office to be up and running shortly after Labor Day. 

• There is very good news on the insurance premiums front, and Staff Mangini will be giving an update at 
agenda item 5A. 

• The underground storage tank project is about to break ground, and the County of San Mateo has 
approved a short-term lease for one acre of the property next door for us to use during construction for 
equipment lay down. 

• The 2025 contractor compensation application has begun with Recology submitting their application on 
June 15, and SBI’s compensation application is due on Monday. 

• He announced that he has been elected as an international delegate to the Solid Waste of North 
America Board and will represent RethinkWaste on the policy committee at a national level. 
 

Member Royse wanted to revisit the office tenant improvements and running through the contingency and asked 
if the budget was still in line. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana answered that the project is still within the contingency that was approved by the 
board. 
 
4. Approval of Consent Calendar 

Consent Calendar item(s) are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on 
these items unless members of the Board, staff or public request specific items be removed for separate action.  Items removed 
from the Consent Calendar will be moved to the end of the agenda for separate discussion. 
A. Approval of the Minutes from the April 25, 2024, Board of Directors Meeting 
B. Resolution Authorizing an agreement with PenMedia, LLC for the purchase of audio-visual equipment 

and installation for the RethinkWaste administrative office at 1245 San Carolos Ave. Suite E, San 
Carlos, CA 94070 for a not to exceed amount of $94,964. 

C. Resolution Approving SBWMA Workplace Violence Prevention Policy 
D. Resolution Approving the Audited Financial Statements for the period ending December 31, 2023 
E. Approval of the Quarterly Investment Report for the quarter ending March 31, 2024 

 
Motion/Second: McCune/Loraine 
Voice Vote: All in favor 9-0-0-2 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Belmont X    Redwood City X    
Burlingame    X San Carlos X    
East Palo Alto X    San Mateo X    
Foster City X    County of San Mateo    X 
Hillsborough X    West Bay Sanitary Dist.  X    
Menlo Park X    

 
5. Administration and Finance 

A. Resolution Approving Property Insurance Policy for 2024-2025 
 
Staff Mangini gave an overview of the background of the change in insurance brokers to Omnis Risk Insurance 
that specializes in the waste industry, and the overall result of that change is that we will save $700,000 in 2024-
2025 over current premiums.  We will also have better coverage and lower premiums except for the MRF.  He 
also noted that the budget has been revised from $3M to $2.3M.   
 



 
p3 
 

Executive Director La Mariana recognized Staff Mangini and Staff Gans for their efforts on this item, as well as 
the Board and the Finance Committee for their leadership.  He also acknowledged SBI for their leadership 
without which the Agency couldn’t have engaged with this new broker Omnis to make this happen. 
 
Member Romero asked if the lower premiums are predicated on the installation of the Fike fire detection system, 
and for a reminder of how much that system cost. 
 
Staff Mangini answered that it is contributing to the lower premiums, but we’re not aware of how much of a factor 
it played.  SBI has also done a lot with their human element, and staff has done a lot with the fire mitigation plan 
which were all factors in the lower premiums.  He noted that the installation cost of the Fike system is $650,000. 
 
Member McCune asked if the insurance underwriters are AM Best Rated, and if there is any relationship 
between the carriers so that if one faults the others will pick up the coverage. 
 
Matt Schmidt of Omnis Risk Insurance answered that some of the carriers are the same carriers that the Agency 
was covered with previously.  The largest carrier is Lloyds of London who is not AM Best rated but is one of the 
oldest insurers in the world and is very financially sound.  He noted he would put together a listing of all the 
carriers and their ratings that could be emailed to the board after the meeting. 
 
Member Royse asked if Omnis represents other waste agencies in the country and have those agencies had 
good experience, noting that he wondered if the captive insurance plan still needed to be in the Agency’s future 
plans. 
 
Staff Managi noted that 85% of their business is insurance coverage in the waste industry, and they are working 
with SBI, and SBI affiliated companies in the area, so they’re heavily involved in the industry. 
 
Motion/Second: Romero/Royse 
Voice Vote: All in favor 9-0-0-2 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Belmont X    Redwood City X    
Burlingame    X San Carlos X    
East Palo Alto X    San Mateo X    
Foster City X    County of San Mateo    X 
Hillsborough X    West Bay Sanitary Dist.  X    
Menlo Park X    

 
B. Resolution Approving Mid-Year 2024 Budget and Capital Improvement Plan 

 
Staff Mangini gave a presentation on the 2024 mid-year budget and the Capital Improvement Plan in the mid-
year budget followed by the 2025 forecast that allows us to set the tip fees. 
 
Member Romero asked if the office move and office permitting expenditure for the new office building were 
unanticipated.  He asked to see a schedule for the whole project when it’s complete. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana noted that permitting was planned in the project budget but has turned out to be 
more extensive than what was budgeted. 
 
Member Loraine asked if the insurance line of $3M would be revised lower after the discussion on insurance 
earlier. 
 



 
p4 
 

Staff Mangini noted that there will be a benefit in the last half of this year, and this was one of the items that will 
be discussed in the 2025 projections, we will be asking for board direction on weather to reduce tip fees or 
replenish reserves with the savings. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana noted that when we put the 2025 projections before the insurance news the 
recommended tip fee increase was 8%, if the full insurance savings is applied to the tip fees, then the number 
goes down to about 6.5%, so he recommended this course of action. 
 
Staff Mangini added that when the board approved the use of the rate stabilization fee to buy down the large rate 
increase last year, an $800,000 loss was approved (in the net operating budget), but in order to get back to the 
level of revenue that is needed to cover costs that 5% needs to get added back in this year, it doesn’t replenish 
reserves, only covers costs. 
 
Member Dehn wondered that since the Finance Committee hasn’t reviewed this, should that committee review it 
first, or does the decision need to be made today. 
 
Staff Mangini noted that the Finance Committee could review this on September 10 and come back with a 
recommendation to the Board in October.  Several Board members agreed with this approach. 
 
Member Loraine asked regarding commodity revenue if the increase in income was due to the new agreement 
with SBI where the agency gets all of the revenue now, or due to an increase in the value of the goods. 
 
Staff Mangini answered both are a factor. 
 
Member Romero asked about the $1.4M mid-year increase in capital costs, and he asked if there was a reason 
it couldn’t be from the bond fund. 
 
Staff Mangini answered that specific projects have been set aside for the bond fund MRF phase I, and Phase II.  
Anything that the bond is paying for has to qualify for green funding, and not all of the projects qualify. 
 
The Board gave staff direction to meet with the Finance Committee to discuss tip fees and come back in 
September with an amended budget. 
 
Member Nash asked when do tip fees go into effect, 
 if a change is made in September. 
 
Staff Mangini answered that 2025 tip fees are used to calculate 50% of the Member Agencies’ revenue 
requirement in the 2025 compensation application process.  So, by delaying this decision the 8% number will be 
used to build the 2025 revenue requirement.  But the actual tip fees won’t change until January 1.  If the Finance 
Committee recommends something other than 8% on September 10, the calculations would be changed before 
the September board meeting. 
 
Motion/Second: Aguirre/Loraine 
Voice Vote: All in favor 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Belmont X    Redwood City X    
Burlingame    X San Carlos X    
East Palo Alto X    San Mateo X    
Foster City X    County of San Mateo    X 
Hillsborough X    West Bay Sanitary Dist.  X    
Menlo Park X    



 
p5 
 

 
6. Collection and Recycling Programs Support and Compliance 

A. Presentation by Recology Summary of Impacts of the November 2023 Cyber Security Incident 
 
John Zirelli, General Manager of Recology San Mateo County gave a highlight overview of the letter that was in 
the staff report.  
 
Member Rak asked for confirmation that none of the databases were affected and asked if it was confirmed that 
this was a ransomware attack, and lastly, what has Recology done in terms of hardening systems, and annual 
testing going forward. 
 
Mr. Zirelli answered that no databases were affected, but the investigation is still ongoing, so he couldn’t 
comment further on the type or intent of the issue.  Recology is still working with consultants on further 
hardening, but we feel like we have a much better system going forward. 
 
Member Royse asked how often Recology reviews cyber security processes and is there an outside review. 
 
Mr. Zirelli noted that the full-time IT staff is internal and reviews processes regularly, but he would get back to the 
Board about outside review processes. 
 
7. Shoreway Operations and Contract Management 

A. Resolution Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute an Organics Processing Agreement with 
Browning-Ferris Industries of California, Newby Island 2025-2029 

 
Staff Gans gave an overview of the staff report, and a background of the evaluation of the proposals and staff’s 
recommendation of contract award. 
 
Member Dehn asked if we paid for the transportation to bring compost back to the jurisdiction, and if so if there 
was enough free compost coming from Newby Island to meet the SB 1383 requirements. 
 
Staff Gans answered that it will depend on how much is needed.  There is a large amount required by SB 1383 
but, time will tell if Member Agencies start using more compost, then more will be needed. 
 
Member Dehn asked if some finished compost is not being accepted at Shoreway now, if it’s not needed in 
order to avoid the cost of transport. 
 
Staff Gans answered correct. 
 
Member Loraine asked if staff would recommend keeping the balance of organics processing 50/50 at each of 
the processing locations, or if there was any interest in shifting that. 
 
Staff Gans answered staff is keeping track of other potential composting facilities, and we would prefer to 
diversify further, if possible, but facilities in the region would need to be able to expand permitting capacity in 
order for that to happen. 
 
Member Romero commented that SB 1383 requires counties to absorb compost based on population, and he 
asked for further guidance on how the agency plans to deal with that because the compost has to go 
somewhere. 
 
Staff Gans commented that in his opinion the development of SB 1383 regulations envisioned a lot more 



 
p6 
 

compost going to processing facilities, and in turn worried about where the increase in finished compost product 
would go.  So, the law tried to build market demand for the product.  That is not happening so far, and the 
majority of finished compost is going to agriculture, but it’s a question of quality, there can’t be contamination for 
agriculture use, so, if the contamination issues are corrected there will be an endless agricultural use for 
compost and the procurement targets won’t be an issue. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana added that the contamination issue has become a very important topic, and staff 
has had a lot of internal discussions about how to clean the material up.  And, working very closely with the 
Recology Zero Waste team to educate commercial food waste generators to not put organic waste into plastic 
bags.  He also noted that the economic consequences of this law are also concerning, because increased 
availability of compost product will drive the cost down, and while that is good for the agricultural community, for 
Recology and BFI who are the processors and marketers, it represents an important revenue source for those 
companies, and if that happens, the per ton price for processing will increase.  He also noted that the industry is 
pushing back on the sheer number of tons calculated by SB 1383, because currently at Shoreway about 100 
tons per year are moved through the facility, and the County’s calculations to comply with SB 1383 are 27,000 
tons per year.  Lastly, he noted that the Agency does plan to reactivate the organics-to-energy food project to 
intercept food waste for a higher and better use.  He also noted that food waste is the contamination issue with 
this material, not green waste. 
 

Motion/Second: Romero/Loraine 
Voice Vote: All in favor 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Belmont X    Redwood City X    
Burlingame    X San Carlos X    
East Palo Alto X    San Mateo X    
Foster City X    County of San Mateo    X 
Hillsborough X    West Bay Sanitary Dist.  X    
Menlo Park X    
 

B. Resolution Approving Contract with Tanner Pacific for Construction Management Services for the 
Underground Storage Tank Project for a not to exceed amount of $206,682.50. 

 
Staff Gans gave an overview of the staff report, and the history of Tanner Pacific with the Shoreway Facility.  
He noted that this is a time and materials contract, and the project should be straight forward, so staff expects 
the amount spent on construction management to be less than the not to exceed amount. 
 
Chair Rak asked for clarification that this is just for managing the project not the actual project. 
 
Staff Gans answered yes, the project itself was previously approved by the board for $2.5M. 
 
Member Aguirre asked if Tanner Pacific was local, and the only game in town. 
 
Staff Gans answered that they are the most familiar construction management company with Shoreway, the 
founder came from Covello who built Shoreway, and he is local in San Carlos. 
 
Member Romero asked if there are design documents that construction management firm has to manage the 
project by, or how is this project working. 
 
Staff Gans answered that it’s a design build, because in preparing for this project it became clear that the 
expertise in doing this kind of work is with the contractors, not the engineers.  This recommendation is about 
Tanner Pacific’s expertise.  They provided a savings to the agency by not having to hire an engineer or 



 
p7 
 

architect to do the design and worked with the contractor to design the project based on their knowledge of the 
Shoreway facility. 
 
Member Romero noted that this contract is 8% of the total project, which is on the low end, and asked what 
staff’s role will be in the project with respect to information requests (RFIs) and avoiding potential cost impacts 
to the project.   
 
Staff Gans noted that by avoiding an architect and engineering phase money has been saved on the project, 
additionally he had negotiated the Tanner Pacific rate down because he thought that hours needed to 
construction manage this project are not as high as they originally proposed.  He expects the RFIs to be 
minimal due to the design build aspect.  However, he added that the areas for concern are soil contamination 
and dewatering, and Tanner Pacific did Silicon Valley Clean Water’s tank replacement project and has 
expertise in this area. 
 
Staff Gans concluded his presentation by noting the timing of the project.  The County permits have just been 
approved, the tanks are about to be ordered and take about 6 to 8 weeks, so it’s looking like late August for the 
start of the project. 
 

Motion/Second: McCune/Loraine 
Voice Vote: All in favor 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Belmont X    Redwood City X    
Burlingame    X San Carlos X    
East Palo Alto X    San Mateo X    
Foster City X    County of San Mateo    X 
Hillsborough X    West Bay Sanitary Dist.  X    
Menlo Park X    
 

C. Resolution Approving Emergency Expenditures Related to MRF Baler Cylinder Replacement 
 
Staff Gans noted staff received notice of baler mechanical failure after the April 25 board meeting, and should 
the baler fail, it would have shut down the MRF, with the Executive Director’s emergency expenditure authority 
the replacement part was purchased. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana added that he doesn’t take emergency expenditures lightly and this is only the 
third time during his tenure that they’ve been activated. He was notified of the baler cylinder failing and there was 
a 16-week lead time on the part, but there was an immediate and available solution to get the needed part 
immediately and avoid the 16-week lead time.  After consulting with the operations team and council, he 
authorized the purchase. 
 
Member Royse asked about the approval process. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana answered that when emergency expenditures are activated, the Agency’s 
procurement process requires notifying the board, so that’s what this action is. 
 
Member Romero asked what the replacement schedule is, and if the baler failed prematurely. 
 
Staff Gans answered there is a replacement schedule that was completed by a third-party assessment and 
added that the frame of the baler is structural steel and can last for a long time, the rest of it is wear parts that 
are constantly being replaced.  This baler is set to be replaced in 5 years. 
 



 
p8 
 

Member Kiessel asked if there are other parts that are in the critical path. 
 
Staff Gans noted that with the start of the new contract with SBI there has been fresh eyes on the site and a lot 
of maintenance projects that have been happening.  Staff is working on a $100M project to upgrade the MRF, 
and a lot of smaller projects most of which have been under the Executive Director’s spending authority, but 
several will be on the September agenda for Board approval, that should those projects not be completed it 
jeopardizes the processing operations. 
 
Motion/Second: Loraine/McCune 
Voice Vote: All in favor 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Belmont X    Redwood City X    
Burlingame    X San Carlos X    
East Palo Alto X    San Mateo X    
Foster City X    County of San Mateo    X 
Hillsborough X    West Bay Sanitary Dist.  X    
Menlo Park X    

 
8. Public Education Outreach and Legislation 

A. Public Spaces program review and future program goals. 
 
Staff Rosales-Jose and Lina Pietrzyk gave a presentation on the history of this program and our current plans to 
refresh the Rethinkwaste public spaces program. 
 
Chair Rak noted that he had asked staff to expand this program and revitalize it, based on the overwhelming 
success in the schools program.  He thought this program aligned with agency’s goals to expand diversion, and 
he would like to see it expanded to all the member agencies over the next couple of years. 
 
Member Loraine noted that he was excited to hear that it’s been expanded to San Mateo’s downtown pedestrian 
mall, and he was excited to be involved in the project. 
 
Member Nash commented that she would like see Menlo Park in the next cohort. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana noted that this program is done on a member agency request basis, but it is 
incumbent that both the Member Agencies and RethinkWaste have staff resources and alignment in priorities to 
make the roll out of this program in each of our member agencies work. 
 
9. Informational Items Only (no action required) 

A. Update on Shoreway Fire Mitigation Plan 
B. 2024 Legislative and Regulatory Update 
C. Update on SB 1383 Compliance Program on behalf of RethinkWaste Member Agencies 
D. 2024 Finance and Rate Setting Calendar 
E. Check Register Detail for April and May 2024 
F. List of Technical Contracts Issues through May 2024 
G. 2024 Meeting Planning Guide 
 

10. Board Member Comments 
 
Member Loraine commented that he would like to have a review of the rate stabilization policy that the Agency 
has in place including guidelines for use, repayment and consideration of best practices around the Agency 
having a rate stabilization fund, since the Member Agencies have rate stabilization funds as well. 



 
p9 
 

 
Memer Dehn supported that approach. 
 
Member Aguirre asked RethinkWaste to define best practices and set a standard for rate stabilization. 
Member Royse also supported having the Finance Committee look at the pros and cons and coming up with a 
recommendation. 
 
The board directed staff to gather the policies from each Member Agency and for Finance Committee members 
to gather comments and concerns from fellow board members, so that the Finance Committee would have more 
than just their individual agency’s perspective on the topic ahead of the discussion. 
 
11. Adjourn 4:01PM 
 
 


